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Judge bars use of King
evidence in mock
trial of Ray

By Chris Conley
The Commercial Appeal

A criminal court judge
Wednesday quashed attempts by
a British network to use evi-
dence from the Martin Luther
King Jr. assassination for a mock
television trial for James Earl
Ray.

Judge John P. Colton said he
would not allow the evidence to
be used even though an agree-
ment between the network and
local prosecutors had been
worked out to safeguard the evi-
dence.

Jack Saltman of Thames Tele-
vision in London said, “We are
definitely going ahead with the
program.. . . We still plan to be-
gin filming in October. I hope it
will be filmed in Memphis, and I
hope it will be filmed in the
courthouse in Memphis.”

On June S, Colton ordered a
temporary hold on use of the evi-
dence and scheduled a June 15
hearing. Wednesday’s ruling
made the earlier order final, at-
torneys in the case said.

- The four-hour, $3 million pro-
duction is scheduled to be
shown Jan. 15, King’s birthday.

King was shot April 4, 1968, as
he stood on the balcony of the
Lorraine Motel, which now is
the National Civil Rights Muse-
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Ray pleaded guilty to the
slaylng and was sentenced to 99
years in prison.

In a six-page order, Colton
said, “such evidentiary items, as
long as they remain in court cus-
tody, are not subject to public or
media. . . as a matter of right.”

Colton noted that although
Ray now seeks release of the ma-
terial for the mock trial, Ray
“has vigorously attempted to get

his guilty plea set aside” since
his conviction.

The evidence must be pre-
served, Colton said, in the event
that Ray is ever granted a trial.

The evidence is stored in 15
boxes in a vault in Criminal
Court Clerk Minerva Johnican’s
office. Among the items are the
30.06 rifle said to have been used
in the slaymg, King’s clothing
and Ray’s passports, receipts and
other personal items.
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Ray mock trial

- Criminal Court John P. Colton
| Jr. Friday put the brakes on a
.-British network’s. plan to use
.evidence in the Martin Luther
12? Jr. assassination in a mock
.4:- for King’s admitted assas-
'‘sin James Earl Ray.
Colton banned any use of the
. evidence until a June 15 hearing
. to determine how Thames Tele-
- vision of London will use the
' items stored in the Criminal
. Court Clerk’s Office.
- Thursday, Thames withdrew a
. petition in Colton’s court seek-
" ing the evidence and announced
; it had reached an agreement
. with the District Attorney Gen-
. eral's Office to view and exam-
'.ine the evidence in the clerk’s
--office and use it during the trial
h ~under official supervision.
t-- Producer Jack Saltman then
k-said his company was ready to
~be filming here in October.
ltop noted in a two-page or-
l-der that Ray still is appealing his
l.guilty plea and 99-year sentence
l -and that the evidence in the case

oumboprotected. q(- 158780 < (5

 ‘he stood on the balcony of the
' Lorraine Matel, now the Nation- e
al Civil Rights Museum. o %’?

—La wrence Buser
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Rehearing sought

on Ray mock trial

A British television network
Monday said it will ask a judge to
reconsider last week’s ruling de-
nying them access to evidence
for a mock trial of James Earl
Ray.

Attorney Wayne Emmons,
who represents Thames Televi-
sion of London, said he will filea
motion asking Criminal Court
Judge John P. Colton Jr. to re-
consider or clarify his ruling.

Colton set a hearing on the
matter for June 24.

Ray is serving a 99-year sen-
tence on his 1969 guilty plea to
the assassination of Dr. Martin
Luther King Jr.

Thames and state prosecutors

ad reached an agreement on
.using evidence from the case for
the mock trial but Colton disa-
greed.

—Lawrence Buser

FBI/DOJ
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Pierotti might inquire
into King ‘plot’ claims

By Marc Perrusquia
The Commercial Appeal

- State prosecutors may look
into new allegations that Dr.
Martin Luther King Jr. was
killed as part of a plot involving
two Memphis businessmen and
others, Dist. Atty. Gen. John
Pierotti said Wednesday.

Pierotti said he still believes
the new allegations are a hoax,
but said he cannot avoid the
groundswell of media attention
since a British newspaper on
Sunday reported details of a pos-
sible conspiracy.

Pierotti said his staff may in-
terview witnesses after consid-
ering new information, includ-
ing an interview expected to air
tonight on national television
with a retired businessman and
one-time Memphis policeman
who claims to know about a plot
behind King's death here in
1968. .

In 1968, Loyd Jowers owned a
restaurant below the second-sto-
ry boarding house from which

convicted assassin James Earl
Ray is said to have fired the shot
that killed King.

In an interview with reporter
Sam Donaldson on the ABC news
program  PrimeTime  Live,
Jowers, 67, will give a different
account of King’s death.

In the interview, to air locally
at 9 p.m. on WHBQ Channel 13,
Jowers will say “he was part of a
conspiracy to murder Dr. King
and that he hired someone to do
the Kkilling,” ABC announced
Wednesday.

Jowers claims he hired a trig-
german, and it was not Ray. The
claim, which has stirred new
controversy in the 25-year-old
case, appears to add new details
to a conspiracy allegation
checked out but dismissed by
the FBI in 1968. .

Pierotti has said the new alle-
gations appear to be manufac-
tured to fit known facts in the
case, but Jowers’ attorney Lewis
Garrison has said his client only
wants the truth to come out.

Pierotti, who was interviewed
by Donaldson Wednesday, said

THe CoMMERCIAL APPEAL

he will be watching the Jowers
interview closely.

Garrison approached Pierotti
several weeks ago seeking im-
munity for his client and four
others in return for naming a
gunman and at least one other
businessman supposedly in-
volved in a conspiracy.

Ray, who is serving a 99-year
sentence for King’s death, did
not commit the murder, accord-
ing to Jowers’ account.

Pierotti originally dismissed
the new claim as a “sham and
fraud.” But the prosecutor said
he’s eager to listen to what
Jowers has to say. Yet, if he finds
there is any truth in his account,
there won't be any deals for the
former restaurant owner, Pier-
otti said.

“If someone actually is guilty
of capital murder and I give him
immunity just to clear the books
on this, I ought to be run out of
town,” Pierotti said.

Pierotti said his staff may in-
terview other witnesses after lis-
tening to Jowers. Pierotti
stressed he is not “reopening the

King case,” but ™
said investiga- Loyd

tors likely Jowers
would check in 1963

for possible
corroborating information to
Jowers statement.

Several efforts to reach Jowers
at his rural Martin, Tenn., home
have been unsuccessful.

In the ABC interview, Jowers
details a conspiracy involving
himself and another former
Memphis businessman, accord-
ing to excerpts released by the
network:

DONALDSON: Was (James
Earl Ray) part of the conspir-
acy?

JOWERS: He was part of it, but
I don’t believe he knew he was
part of it. But he was part of it,
yes, he was there.

DONALDSON: Tell me about
Frank Laberto (sic). Who was he
and what was your relationship
with him?

JOWERS: Well, he was in the
produce business. I met Frank

Please see KING, Page B2
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The Memphis Food Ba
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Capping the semester

Students in Christian Brothers University’s Introduction to Engineering Design classes were
asked to invent devices to open childproof bottle caps — for adults who have limited hand strength.
Toli Savvaides tests his team’s entry as the judges make the rounds. The CBU Engineering Depart- :
ment collaborated with the University of Tennessee Rehabilitation Engineering Center. .

By Michael McMullan

From Page B1
King

Laberto (sic) when I was a po-
liceman, city policeman in 1947.
We've become pretty good
friends, not real real close
friends, you might say business
friends. Laberto (sic) has done
me several large favors, so 1
owed him a favor or at least I
thought I did.

Jowers goes on to say he was
asked “to handle some money
transaction, hire someone to as-
sassinate Dr. Martin Luther
King,” the ABC excerpts show.

Two weeks after King’s assas-
sination, authorities questioned
Frank Camilla Liberto, then liv-
ing at 3271 Powers St. in Mem-
phis’s Raleigh area, according to
FBI reports.

Liberto, then president of the
L L & L Produce Co., 814 Scott, al-
legedly was overheard talking
about King’s murder on the tele-
phone the day of the assassina-
tion, April 4, 1968.

John McFerren of Somerville,
Tenn., told investigators he was
in Memphis shopping for
grocers at the Farmers Market
when he overheard a conversa-
tion by a man who weighed “ap-
proximately 300 pounds,” ac-
corgling to an April, 11, 1968, FBI
report.

“McFerren stated that the
heavyset man did not see him at
that time. He stated he heard the
heavyset man say, ‘Kill the S.0.B.
on the balcony and get the job
done. You will get your $5,000. ”

King was shot on the balcony
of the Lorraine Motel about 6:01
p.m. that day. But when agents

questioned Liberto, then 51
years old and weighing 285
pounds, he “emphatically de-
nied having any knowledge” of
King’s murder, according to an
April 23, 1968, FBI report.

“He advised he may have made
statements to the effect that
King should be killed, although
he does not recall any specific
statements made by him to this
effect,” the FBI report said.

The report went on to say: “Li-
berto advised he frequently
taunts various individuals re-
garding racial matters and may
have made disparaging remarks
to some of his customers. ..”

Liberto explained to agents
that he frequently purchases
produce over the telephone and
his discussions involve large
sums of money. The FBI checked
out the tip as one of many.

Liberto, who would be 76 now,
is believed to be living in New
Orleans, said Frank H. Liberto,
no relation, a former Memphis
car dealer who said he was often
confused with the other Liberto.
Efforts to reach Frank Camilla
Liberto on Wednesday were un-
successful.

Pierotti said he heard from
sources Wednesday afternoon
that the new conspiracy theory
would implicate a man named
Liberto. The new theory was
fueled by a story Sunday in a
London daily, The Observor,

. which maintained the plot ulti-
mately was tied to mobsters in
New Orleans.

“This is wild,” Pierotti said.
“Why in the name of God are
they going to use Jowers to pick
a hit man? If they are in the Ma-
fia, they know hit men.”
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‘the King

In 1968, Jowers owned Jim’s
Grill, 418 S. Main. He and several

patrons were interviewed by po- |

lice shortly after the murder,

but did not discuss details of a |

plot. Jowers moved to Martin re-

cently where he operates a con- |
venience store and is said toown |

several small houses.

Garrison, Jowers’
previously had declined to name
his client, referring to him oaly
as a mystery businessman who
was Sseeking immunity from
prosecution. It was unclear
Wednesday why Jowers had de-
cided to go public. Efforts to
reach Garrison at his home and
office were unsuccessful.

Pierotti said new claims about
assassination get
stranger by the day. The prose-
cutor said he’s heard through
good sources that Memphis pri-
vate detectives are out looking
for Jowers’s gunman.

“The last I heard they were
looking for the real shooter and
he was picking strawberries in
Florida,” he said.
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rPierotti
rejects King
probe; calls
case ‘sham’

By Marc Perrusquia
The Commercial Appeal

An attorney is asking that a
grand jury reopen the Martin
Luther King Jr. assassination in-
vestigation, claiming a retired
Memphis businessman hired the
gunman who killed the civil
rights leader in 1968.

Dist. Atty. Gen. John Pierotti
said Saturday he’s been ap-
proached by a group that claims
to have new information on
King’s murder. Pierotti said he
places no validity to the claims,
saying he declined to reopen the

case.
However, the group plans to (fc// / 7? 7

pursue the case under a state law EARCHED
that allows private citizens to "fE “HED
seek grand jury reviews of al- SERIALIZED
leged crimes, Pierotti said. :

. The allegations have stirred a

| flurry of media interest, includ-
ing by a report today in The Ob-
server of London. A front-page
story in the British newspaper
claims convicted assassin James

FB81/D0OJ
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Earl Ray did not shoot King, but
that an unidentified retired
Memphis businessman hired an-
other gunman.

Pierotti said he has been con-
tacted recently by reporters
from several national media out-
lets inquiring about the new
claim. But Pierotti said he be-
lieves the claim is not worth pur-
suing.

“I believe it is a sham and a

fraud upon the public,” Pierotti
said, saying the only possible
motive behind the claim that he
can think of is publicity.

“I think the whole thing is an

Andy Warhol day-in-the-sun

thing,” Pierotti said, referring to

" the late American artist’s predic-

_tion that everyone would fam-
ous for 15 minutes.

Pierotti said he first heard of

the new claim several months

ago when he received a call
from Circuit Court Judge
D’Army Bailey. Bailey said he’'d
been contacted by Memphis at-
torney Lewis Garrison who said
he had a new revelation into the
assassination. /
Pierotti then called Garrison,

.who said he represents a Mem-

phis businessman and four oth-
ers who have new information
on the case. The businessman
was seeking immunity from
prosecution in return for nam-
ing the gunman, Pierotti said.
Garrison did not return tele-
phone calls to his home Saturday
night.

After reviewing the claim!
with former district attorney |

general Phil Canale and others
familiar with the King case,
Pierotti determined there was
no validity, he said.

“We were of the unanimous
opinion that someone is running
a game,” Pierotti said.

A recent movie by HBO into

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176

the King assassination has trig-
gered renewed interest into the
case. '

Memphis private investigator
John Billings, who said he was
hired to help investigate the
‘case for the movie producers,
said he has been working with
Garrison to look deeper into the
case. ;

“This isn’t just a theory,” said
Billings, 45, who said he’s talked
with the Memphis businessman
but declined to name him. “We
know beyond a doubt that James
Earl Ray had nothing at all to do
with the assassination.”
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pect in jail since July 31, had be-
come pregnant.

Harris, Walter S. Smothers and
Stacy D. Ramsey are charged in
the July 30 killing of 19-year-old
college student Dennis Brooks.

Chandler’s story followed re-
ports in the competing weekly
Carroll County News-Leader, lat-
er confirmed by Sheriff Douglas
Brandon, that male inmates had
been found in female inmates’
cells at the Carroll County Jail
in Huntingdon.

Brandon’s department and the
jail are the subject of a Tennes-
see Bureau of Investigation
probe. Brandon accepted the
resignation of one deputy jailer
and fired another in October
after the jail visitation scandal
reports surfaced.

t could not be determined
Thursday whether Harris is
pregnant.

uou, L avert tnat,” ne said.

“We just plan not to testify,”
said the newpaper'’s editor, Joel
Washburn.

Chandler appeared in court on
Thursday on an unrelated mat-
ter and pleaded guilty todriving
under the influence of alcohol
and carrying a dangerous weap-
on. Records show he was arrest-
ed Oct. 17 with a 38-caliber auto-
matic pistol that he said he car-
ried after he was stabbed earlier
this year. Judge Larry Logan
sentenced him to spend 10 days
in the same Carroll County Jail
he has been writing about.

“It’s part of life,” he said of the
sentence.

Sheriff Brandon is expected to
be in court Wednesday for a trial
of charges that he was driving
drunk in Paris, Tenn., on Sept.
30, when he ran a stop sign and
collided with a van. Brandon
has pleaded not guilty.
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By Robert Cohen

Heat on the bacon

J. McBride puts out a fire in a refrigerated truck Thursday on
North Parkway. Larry Valentine of Hardin’s-Sysco Food Services
was backing up to the dock at St. Joseph Hospital when he saw
smoke. He moved the vehicle, loaded with 400 cases of bacon and
other food, away from the dock and called the fire department.

suC dawmue  pauel ruied
month that the Senate plan
lated the Voting Rights "Act
cause it underrepresented bl
voters in West Tennessee.

Support slim for Jowers’s conspiracy claim

By Marc Perrusquia
The Commercial Appeal

MARTIN, Tenn. Loyd
Jowers, the retired Memphis
businessman who claims he con-
spired to assassinate Dr. Martin
Luther King Jr. in 1968, may
need to do some more talking to
convince one of his best friends
he committed the act.

“He don't seem like that kind

of a feller,” said Robert Fergu-
son, 57, who fishes with Jowers
and helped him move back here
from Memphis two years ago.
“’Course, you never can tell.”
Jowers, 67, shook up friends
and acquaintances Thursday
night when he claimed in a na-
tionally televised interview that
he hired a gunman to kill King
and that the killer was not con-
victed assassin James Earl Ray.
Jowers, who now lives in a

small house on the edge of Mar-
tin, a small town two hours
north of Memphis, told reporter
Sam Donaldson on the ABC news
program PrimeTime Live that
he was paid “a large amount of
money” by another Memphis
businessman to kill King.

But if Jowers is what he says
he is, he’s left little record of it.
Jowers has assembled a small
collection of real estate holdings
over the years, but there is little

evidence that he is the wealthy

businessman that proponents of
a new conspiracy theory make
him out to be.

In Memphis, Jowers had sever-
al careers, working in the 1960s
as a restaurant proprietor, in the
1980s as a taxi cab company own-
er and, for a brief time in the
1940s, a Memphis police officer,
he said. Jowers currently owns a

Please see JOWERS, Page B2

County jail
begins for

By Rob Johnson
The Commercial Appeal

Willie Sanders glanced at
cards, slapped them on the ¢
block table and began fidget
with the piece of stri
around his wrist. g

It’s hard to maint a pol
face, after all, when the rest
your body is screaming for ni
tine.

“Yeah, it’s tough,” he sa
“ButI'm glad to get the chancd
quit smoking, I guess.”

He doesn't have much choig

The 38-year-old Sanders is o
of the 160 Shelby County Jail
mates now housed in the fac
ty’s direct-supervision pod, t
floor jail administrators det
mined would be the first to
dergo the new smoking ban.

The direct-supervision flog
with its large community are
is for inmates who have earn
the right to extra amenities. B
Wednesday, these in
the first group to loa‘
to smoke.

That’s because they are t
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courses such as management
training and the handling of
hazardous material.

But this fall, many firefighters
were not approved for tuition
reimbursement. They were told
that no money was left from
$281,627 appropriated for train-
ing, Posey said.

Some firefighters already had
paid the tuition when they were
denied approval for the classes,
Posey said. Others did not take
courses because they learned
they wouldn’t be reimbursed.

Personnel director Westelle
Florez and Fire Director Charles
E. Smith did not return tele-
phone calls to their offices.

The Memphis Police Associ-
ation has filed a grievance about
the denial of the tuition reim-
bursements, said president Ray
Maples. He said the group has re-
quested a meeting with Mayor
W. W. Herenton and expects to
settle the matter without an ar-
bitration hearing that will cost
the union and city $2,500 each.

—Patti Pa tterson

Ole Miss readies

ban on smoking

The University of Mississippi
at Oxford will ban smoking in all
academic and administrative
buildings starting Jan. 1.

Those buildings, as well as the
Student Union, Vaught-Heming-
way Stadium and Tad Smith Coli-
seum, will no longer have desig-
nated smoking areas.

“It is the duty of the university
to provide a safe, healthful envi-
ronment for students, faculty

and staff members and visitors,”

Ole Miss Chancellor Gerald
Turner said.

Policies governing Ole Miss
dormitories will remain virtual-
ly unchanged with smoking al-
lowed only in students’ rooms,
said Monroe Harrison, director
of student housing.

-—Staff and wire

Body ID’d as
Michelle Branch

Police identified the body of a
27-year-old woman found dead
on a sidewalk Thursday.

Michelle A. Branch of 2314
Norman was found lying on a
sidewalk in the 1100 block of
Springwood Cove.

Police do not suspect foul play,
but homicide Commander R. G.
Wright surmised it would take
several days to determine the
cause of death as medical exam-

From Page B1

Jowers

convenience store and several
small houses in Martin, where
he moved in 1991.

For years, Jowers was just an
obscure footnote among the
reams of books and investiga-
tion files on the King assassina-
tion.

In 1968, Jowers owned Jim’s
Grill, a restaurant at 418 S. Main
near the Lorraine Motel, where
King was shot. Interviewed by
police three days after the April
4, 1968, assassination, Jowers,
then 41, said he heard a loud
noise “like something that fell
in the kitchen.”

About five minutes after the
shooting, “a state highway pa-
trol or sheriff’s deputy come to
the door with his pistol drawn,
and he ordered me to lock the
door, not let anyone in or out,”
Jowers told police then.

Jowers told investigators he
noticed that a white Mustang,
later linked to Ray, had been in
front of his grill before the
shooting but had disappeared
afterward.

Jowers tells a much different
story now, to the astonishment
of some people who knew him.

“He was a nice Southern gen-
tleman,” said Joanne Osborne,
35, who once lived next door to
Jowers in Memphis's Frayser
area. “He was a very nice neigh-
bor. He seemed like a very hon-
orable man.”

Jowers didn't seem like the
type of man who would hire a
killer, or one who would lie
about it, Osborne said.

But Jowers didn’t show his
gentle side in 1987 when he took
on topless bar owner Danny
Owens in a fight to control local
taxicab business.

In 1982, Jowers bought Veter-
ans Cab Co. out of Chapter 11
bankruptcy court proceedings.
But in a lawsuit five years later,
Jowers claimed Owens was us-
ing threats and intimidation to
drum him out of the business.

Jowers alleged in a Chancery
Court lawsuit that Owens paid
Jowers’s cab drivers to go on
strike in 1983 in a move to flatten
Jowers’s new business. Jowers

eventually sold Veterans Cab to
Owens for $35,000 in 1985, but
Jowers charged Owens pulled
the deal off through fraud.

Jowers claimed his business
really was worth $150,000.

Owens also sued Jowers,
claiming Jowers had reneged on
an agreement to not compete
with Owens.

The opposing lawsuits even-
tually fizzled for lack of action,
but Jowers didn’t take the mat-
ter sitting down. Jowers, who op-
erated a taxi radio dispatch ser-
vice after selling Veteran Cab,
“unplugged the dispatch radios
on several occasions” so Owens’s
taxis could not receive calls,
Owens charged in court papers.

Jowers quietly left Memphis .

in 1991 after the death of his first
wife, Dorothy. Public records
show Jowers sold his taxicab
headquarters in 1991 for $15,250
and sold his home at 3258 Boone
for about $40,000 before heading
to Martin.

On Aug. 9, 1991, Jowers mar-
ried awoman 19 years his junior,
the former Shirley Ann Wil-
loughby, now 48. The couple
bought a Gardner Stop N’ Shop
convenience store last spring in
Martin. Jowers also owns at least
three other properties in Martin
with a total appraised value of
about $36,000, records show.

Jowers lives in a small house
with white siding across the
street from a trailer park with
numerous abandoned mobile
homes and littered yards.
Junked cars abound in yards in
the neighborhood.

As he did in Memphis, Jowers
has kept a low profile. Repeated
efforts to reach him this week
were unsuccessful, including
several visits to his home.

Ferguson said he once visited
Jowers in Memphis, where
Jowers took him to Jim’s Grill
and showed him where King
was shot. But Jowers never men-
tioned any conspiracy, Ferguson
said.

Martin Police Chief Jackie
Moore said he never heard of
Jowers until reporters began
pouring into town this week
looking for him. Moore said he is
concerned about security now
that Martin is home to a self-
proclaimed conspirator.

“We'’re afraid we may attract
some attention,” he said.

From Page B1
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Nursing students to receive pins

Members of the Shelby State
Community College evening
and weekend nursing classes
will receive pins signifying com-
pletion of the student nursing

Jan Young, vice president of
St. Joseph Hospital, will be guest
speaker at the ceremony, in
which 76 nursing students are
expected to participate.
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Police ID .
found at ¢

Memphis police sa
they have identifiec
two bodies found W
an illegal dump n
Memphis Defense 1
Depot.

They determined 1
gerprints that one ¢
Charles Gregory Ct
2447 Saratoga.

Police believe he
dead about 48 h-
health inspectors
body at the dump ¢
Menager, Deputy t
Warner said.

Police say that gun
chest, thigh and
Chism, the 203rd hc
tim in Memphis this
tives say they have n

Police still had no
the body of a white
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about 75 feet from Ch
officers were invest
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By James Chisum
The Commercial Appeal

Dist. Atty. Gen. John Pierotti
romised Friday to investigate
ully the televised allegations of
a West Tennessee man that he
participated in a plot to kill civil
rights leader Dr. Martin Luther
King Jr.

But Pierotti asked media rep-
resentatives to give him breath-
ing room as the investigation

ntinues, saying he will keep

e public informed of any find-
ings. .

Loyd Jowers, 67, who operated
a restaurant across the street

from the motel balcony where
King was shot on April 4, 1968,
said in the television interview
Thursday night that he was
asked to hire a man to kill King.

The request, Jowers said, came
from Frank Liberto, who operat-
ed a produce business here in
the 1960s. ABC reporter Sam
Donaldson, who interviewed
Jowers on PrimeTime Live, said
Liberto gave Jowers $100,000 to
pay a hit man.

Jowers stopped short of identi-
fying the hit man or saying that
he actually gave him the money
to kill King.

Rev. Joseph E. Lowery, presi-

-dent of the civil rights group

that King led until his assassina-
tion, on Friday reacted to
Jowers’s claims by calling for a
Justice Department probe.

“l domn’t think there's any
doubt there was a conspiracy,”
said Lowery, head of the Atlanta-
based Southern Christian Lead-
ership Conference. “When you
put everything together, you
have to take these allegations se-
riously.”

During the ABC interview,
Jowers said a man with Hispanic
features with a name that sound-
ed like Raoul visited him at,

Jim’s Grill, which Jowers oper-"

ated at 418 South Main, and

asked him to hold a rifle. The -

By Michael McMullan

Dist. Atty. Gen. John Pierotti is asking the news media for “breafh'mg room” to probe claims of a piot to kill Dr. Martin Luther King Jr.

Jierotti to investigate
charges of King plot

man promised police would be
out of the way and a decoy would
be used, Jowers said.

Also interviewed on ABC was
Willie Akins, who said “afriend”
— whom Donaldson identified
as Jowers — asked him in 1974 to
“get somebody out of the way.”
He said he thought the target
was King’s killer and described
him as a “slow-acting black
man.”

Donaldson also talked with
former King assassination in-
vestigator Walter Fauntroy, who
implied that Liberto was linked
to organized crime in New Or-
leans.

Pierotti said he will assign in-
vestigators and ask for help
from the Tennessee Bureau of
Investigation to find out
whether the allegations can be

‘proved or disproved.

Pierotti said media interest in
the allegations requires him to

Please see KING, Page B2

to spotlight
China tomb

By Jimmie Covington
The Commercial Appeal

Memphis and Shelby Cou
Port Commission members
day approved a $3.5 million 14
to the Wonders International
ries for a 1995 China exhibit.

Series director Jon Thomp;s
said the commission would
highlighted as a major spon
of the exhibition. The partn
ship between the two gove
mental entities reflects that
city is a progressive commun
he said.

Commission approval of
loan was the last step needed
the city to move forward
contracting for the exhibit.
City Council on Tuesday
proved appropriation of
funds subject to the port gro
approval.

The loan will come from
commission’s reserve fujy
held by the city and will not
clude any commission fu
that go to Shelby County govd

~ment. The Port Commission

pervises industrial developm
on Presidents Island and Fr
C. Pidgeon Idustrial Park.
Outlining the attention
port group will receive, Tho

Lanier asks
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rogram, the largest in De-
punty history.
Trent Lott (R-Miss.), the
peaker, congratulated the
1 for DeSoto County’s
. “No county has been
progressive than DeSoto
. The county is making
ss because of the positive
e in the county, in its peo-
l in its leaders.”
illiam C. Bayne

snd man held
tal robbery

e have charged a second
the slaying of a retired
is police officer in a rob-
a South Memphis busi-

ham Galmore III, 23, was
] with one count of first-
murder, one count of at-
i murder and two counts
pcially aggravated rob-
Memphis Police Com-
R. G. Wright said.
Swartz, 61, was killed

at the Keyport Self-Stor-
iness he operated at 1235

. Two men stabbed and
yartz his 55-year-old
axin ter getting in-
ir bulletproof office.
5 Edward Hathaway, 33,
Eason, a man who had
id jobs for the Swartzes,
harged Thursday with
gree murder, attempted
and especially aggravat-
€ery.
b said the Swartzes let
ay into the business be-
hey knew him, but he was
d in by Galmore. Both
bre armed, Wright said.
husband was shot and
, as‘was the wife. She was
call a daughter and po-
er the two men left.
. —Chris Conley

g awaited

casino site on the Gulf Coast.
Commissioner Bob Engram,
who joined Bill Gresham in vo-
ting to approve the site, said he
was surprised at the industry
group’s audacity. “Are they so

strong that they think they can
run the state?” he said.

The site, being developed by
Gold Strike Resort and Casino
and Lone Star Casino Corp., sits
about 800 feet north of the Bay of
St. Louis. The companies want to
dig a 1,200-foot canal to the site,
where they plan to spend $170
million building two casinos,
two hotels and a golf course.

The Mississippi Casino Opera-
tors Association is asking the
court to overturn the commis-
sion’s decision and to stop Gold
Strike and Lone Star from pro-
ceeding with construction.

—Sarah C. Campbell

Johnican event
stars Kirk Whalum

Jazz saxophonist Kirk Wha-
lum will be featured in a Christ-
mas concert and fund-raiser
sponsored by Friends of Min-
erva Johnican, the Shelby Coun-

ty Criminal
Court Clerk, at
7 p.m. Sunday
at The Pea-
body.

Son of City
| Council mem-
8 ber Kenneth
 Whalum, the
§ tenor sax play-

er lives in

. Southern Cali-
Kirk fornia and has
Whalum toured with
pop singer Whitney Houston for
the past three years.

Tickets are $100 and $25. For
more ticket information, call
682-7667 or 522-9229.

—Nate Hobbs

From Page B1

' Loan

tal improvements needs up to
the amount of the loan.

The loan will be be the third
received by Wonders, a series of
exhibitions of art, cultural and
historic objects from various
countries and empires.

The series still owes about
$3 million from a $4.2 million re-
volving loan fund approved by
the City Council in 1989. A sec-

-ond loan, $2.5 million for this

year’s Napoleon exhibit, has
been repaid. At the end of the
1992 fiscal year, the Port Com-
mission’s city reserve fund to-
taled $7.8 million.

County government takes a po-

sition that the commission does
not have any control over the
county’s one-half share of excess
operating funds. County govern-
ment pays half of the commis-
sion’s bills and receives half of
the revenue with excess funds
going into the county’s general
operating funds, said John
Trusty, deputy finance adminis- '
trator with the county.

From Page B1
King
investigate, adding:

“I'm kind of curious myself
why all this is being said 25
years after the fact.”

It will be difficult to investi-
gate something that happened
so long ago, he said. The time lag
makes it easier to make state-
ments that can’t be verified.

Asked if he believed anything
said by Jowers and AKkins, Pier-

otti said:

“Yeah, 1 believe they stated
their names correctly. Those
were probably honest answers.”

He would not describe plans
for the investigation, though he
promised it would be thorough.
And he expressed skepticism.

“Who are they giving us?” he

asked rhetorically. “They’re giv-
ing us a man who's been dead for
a number of years and can’t re-
spond. They’re giving us again
the mysterious Raoul, who no-
body knows anything about.”

James Earl Ray, who pleaded
guilty to killing King, claims a
shadowy smuggler named Raoul
may have killed King. Do

“And (they are) telling -us
about an individual who is sip-
posed to be the shooter that no-
body’s found yet, claiming he's a
rather dull black man who they
gottodo it because he was dumb.

“Aw, come on, give me a
break.” 1

The New York Times News Ser-
vice contributed to this story.

From Page B1 .

Birch

On leave for 30 days, he stu-
died for and passed the Tennes-
see Bar Exam.

His first real law job was with
real estate broker J. F. McLellan
of Nashville, whose own law
practice was incidental to real
estate. Birch started out with
closings and property law. One
year later, he joined the law firm
of Nashville city councilman
and Democratic leader Bob Lil-
lard. “I guess he saw some kind
of potential in me, but he hired
me.”

Like other black lawyers in
Nashville, he represented many
of the black protesters here who

elected to a
statewide of-
fice.

Today, he’ll
become the
second  Afri-

¥ 4 can-American
ever to hold a
seat on the
state Supreme
Court.

Privatlt)aly,

: some emo-
Adolpho Birch crats and Re-
publicans have predicted Birch
will face a difficult election in
August because of his race.
Unlike elections to the appel-
late courts, which involve vot-
ers choosing whether to retain a
sitting judge, the Supreme Court
is chosen through a contested

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176

the court. ,
Birch is restrained by judicial
ethics in what he can say about
specific issues coming before
the court. ‘

But on the issue of the state’s '
death penalty, which Daught--
rey’s critics accused her of re-
sisting, he points out that he has .
sentenced people to death as a -
criminal court judge and has
upheld death sentences on ap-
peal. “My oath is to uphold the -
law and I do that.” :

Relaxing in his office, Birch is
clearly awed by the prospect of
the state’s highest court. But he
also doesn’t gloss over the fact
that his job has been to review
some of the most gruesome of
criminal cases.

“It’s a job that I can wake up to
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newfound plenty.

“This baby needs some shoes.
Get her some shoes and get this
family a box of food,” said Rean
Jackson, one of about 200 church
members who took part in
Imani’s fourth annual gift-bear-
ing visitation to a county that
still is among America’s poorest.

Robinsonville was the first of
four stops made Saturday morn-
ing by Imani’s Christmas train
of 50 cars and trucks. Church
members spent the better part of
the day passing out food, cloth-
ing, toys, even a few pieces of

b O
By Richard Gardner

3 new clothes as the church helps Robinsonville, Miss., residents.

elta’s down-and-out

furniture to dozens of families
in need.

“We're not doing anybody any
favors,” Rev. Bill Adkins told the
flock as they prepared to load up
and head out early Saturday
morning.

“We’re just trying to do the
Lord’s business. Jesus said, ‘Inas-
much as ye did it for the least of
these, ye did it for Me.’

“Down in one of those cotton
fields may be Jesus waiting to
see if we're coming to feed him

Please see HELP, Page A26

old de TeCoro
setin 1990, when 207!
were murdered.

The record began
as the weekend beg
day, a 6-year-old boy, :
ed missing by his gu.
found dead under a |
clothes in his Frayse

Then Saturday mor
ger stumbled across
a 4l-year-old woma
onto the grassy strij
office park near the )
ternational Airport
been stabbed to de
said, becoming the 20
victim in Memphis t]

‘Memphis Police Di
vin T. Burgess, who
million to hire 75 ne
ficers, deplored the
violence tearing at
heart.

“This country is :
he said. “It’s not lik
be. We have to do so
things to stop this vi

Memphis is not a
ting records of vic

‘Why now?’ wary
ask in King ‘plot’

By James Chisum
The Commercial Appeal

Loyd Jowers, a former Mem-
phis businessman, says there
was a conspiracy to kill Dr. Mar-
tin Luther King Jr. and that he
has the details of the plot.

Hogwash or truth?

For some, the answer doesn’t
seem to make any difference.
They want the claim investigat-
ed. Others are wondering how
such an obscure, minor charac-
ter in the original investigation
rose to such prominence.

But for the really skeptical,
the only worthwhile inquiry is
this: Why is all of this talk about
the King assassination surfacing
now — almost 25 years after
James Earl Ray pleaded guilty to
gunning down the civil rights
giant on the balcony of the Lor-
raine Motel here?

No one has a definitive answer
to the why now? question. But

‘| many share the conclusion of

N.E. Zachary, then-chief of
homicide for the Memphis Po-
lice Department.

“They’re trying to get Ray out
of prison,” said Zachary. “If he
knew all this, why is he telling it
now? ... This doesn’t make a lot

of sense from any direction.”

Joe Hester, the retired FBI
case agent, suspects that
Jowers’s claim has something to
do with expected income from
talk shows, books, movies and
other ways of exploiting the is-
sue.

“I can’t imagine any other rea-
son,” Hester said.

Police, the FBI and congres-
sional investigators concluded
that King’s assassin fired the fa-
tal shot on April 4, 1968, from an
upstairs bathroom window in a
boarding house at 418 S. Main.
The shooter escaped, but a rifle
and other items later identified
with Ray were dropped just out-
side the boarding house.

Although police swarmed over
the area within minutes, Ray es-
caped. He fled first to Atlanta,
then to Montreal, and finally to
England, where he was captured
by British police.

Returned to Shelby County,
Ray pleaded guilty to the mur-
der charge in 1969 and was sen-
tenced to 99 years in prison.

But he quickly recanted the
guilty plea. He has insisted since
that he did not shoot King, that

he was used as a decoy by a mys-

Please see KING, Page A22

Soldiers returni:
Drum, N.Y. “This
Staff Sgt. Kevin (
About 450 membe

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176

h




|

:

From Page A1

King

terious seaman called “Raoul.”
' A number of books, articles
nd television films supporting
ay's claims or putting forth

other conspiracy theories have

followed.

i Then last week, an article in a
ondon newspaper reported

that a Memphis businessman
anted immunity in return for

Xescribing a plot to kill King. It

quoted William Pepper, the lat-

ést in a long line of lawyers who

have represented Ray, and Lew-

is Garrison, a Memphis lawyer

who represents Jowers and four
thers who say they know de-

tails of the alleged plot.
' As the week continued, media

1 hursday night when the 67-
' year-old Jowers told a national
television audience that he was
asked by Frank Liberto to ar-
tange for the assassination of
King. Liberto, who operated a
roduce company in Memphis, is
gead. according to Sam Donald-
gon of ABC News.
; Dist. Atty. Gen. John Pierotti is
skeptical of the allegations but
gaid the media interest forces
him to investigate them.
1 In 1968, Jowers ran Jim’s Grill,
4 greasy-spoon restaurant on the
irst floor of the boarding house,
irectly under the upstairs room
rented by Ray.
; He figured into the initial in-
vestigation only as an observer
who reported hearing a loud
shot. He told police he saw a
white Mustang parked outside
the restaurant when he arrived
for work at midafternoon.
! The information about the
ustang was confusing because
Other testimony placed the
getaway car farther south. Mem-
his police concluded that two
ustangs had been parked on
South Main or that Ray had
—moved the car after Jowers saw
.
» Liberto had alarger role in the
Extial investigation, though po-
ce and FBI agents concluded
at he was not involved in the
§ssassination.
! He came to the attention of in-

interest grew. It reached a peak .

vestigators a few days after the

slaying when John McFerren,

the operator of a small store in
Somerville, called Baxton Bry-
ant, then director of the Tennes-
see Council on Human Rela-
tions.

McFerren said he had been at

the Scott Street farmers market,
buying a sack of potatoes when
he heard a heavyset white man
say on the telephone:

“Kill the son of a bitch on the
balcony and get the job done.
You will get your $5,000.”

Later, McFerren said, he
heard the man say:

“Don’t come out here. Go to
New Orleans and get your mon-
ey. You know my brother.”

Frank Liberto denied making
such statements on the phone,
though he said he often dis-
cussed large amounts of money
in connection with his business.
He also admitted he might have
said King should be shot in casu-
al conversations.

But he denied any knowledge
of the assassination.

FBI agents in New Orleans in-
terviewed Liberto’s family on
April 23, 1968.

Anthony Liberto said his
brother, Frank, made occasional
trips to the Hammond, La., area
to buy produce, particularly
strawberries.

Emma Liberto, his mother,
said she had seen her son in mid-
April when he came to Louisiana
to buy strawberries.

Vincent Liberto said he hadn’t
talked to Frank by telephone in
four years.

But Salvador Albert Liberto
said that just before the King as-
sassination he had called Frank
to borrow $200. He said his
brother told him of his winnings
at the races in Hot Springs and
invited him to go to the track
with him.

Zachary, in his capacity as
chief of homicide for the Mem-
phis Police Department, inter-
viewed McFerren several days
after the assassination.

He concluded that McFerren

had not known what Liberto was
talking about and had jumped to

a false conclusion.
“He just put two and two to-
gether and assumed he was talk-

‘ing a’mt King,” Zachary said
. Friday.

The information from McFer-
ren was mixed with hundreds of
tips to police and the FBI in thé
aftermath of the King slaying.
Investigators followed them up,
but many were inconclusive.
They were forgotten as the trail
left by Ray became hot.

The men who sent Ray to pris-
on remain fully confident that
Ray was the triggerman. They
view with strong skepticism
Jowers’s televised claim that he
took part in a plot to kill King.

- “I think it’s hogwash,” said
Robert Cochran, who helped in-
vestigate the King slaying in
1968 as a homicide captain. He’s
now an exXecutive in a security
firm.

“It’s kind of warmed-over soup
to me,” said Robert K. Dwyer,
who would have helped pros-
ecute Ray had he gone to trial.
Then an assistant district attor-
ney general, Dwyer now is a
judge on the state’s Court of
Criminal Appeals.

Former district attorney gen-
eral Phil Canale, who was in
charge of the Ray prosecution,
was not available to comment on
the latest in the line of conspir-
acy theories. “We’re not taking
calls,” said Mrs. Canale.

“I still believe James Earl Ray
killed Martin Luther King, and
that he acted alone,” said Hester,
the retired FBI case agent for
the murder.

Othersinvolved in the investi-
gation and prosecution have
never declared flatly there was
no conspiracy, though some be-
lieve the shooting was not espe-
cially complicated and could
have been accomplished by Ray
alone.

Their position since 1968 has
been simply that they had no
evidence of a conspiracy.

Retired Criminal Court judge
James C. Beasley, who worked
on the case as an assistant dis-
trict attorney general, says he
would be delighted if concrete
evidence of a conspiracy ap-

peared.
-« *I don’t discourage any effort

to bring forth any other person
who had a part in it,” Beasley
said last week.
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» WASHINGTON — As Rep. Mar-
Pprie  Margolies-Mezvinsky (D-
Pa.) voted in August to put Presi-

lican district.

By the criteria historically
used to judge incumbents’ vul-
nerability, Margolies-Mezvinsky
fits the classic profile of a “mar-
ginal” House member.
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:_Political vulnerability game’s
imyths and measurements change

vulnerability and election-year
volatility has become so diffi-
cult. Even apart from the over-
arching influences of presiden-
tial politics and economic condi-
tions, assessing House members’
individual predicaments can be
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l NASHVILLE (AP) — A home-
less man in Orlando, Fla., denied
ny involvement in the assassi-
ation of Dr. Martin Luther
King Jr. after he was called the
triggerman of a conspiracy to
Kill the civil rfépffs leader.
| Frank Holt,"62, spoke to The
€nnessean in a copyright story
jublished today. He was identi-
fiied as the man who shot King by
ine of five people who have
jome forward 25 years after
King was assassinated, the news-
aper said.

Mg
rom Page A1

ing

brious seaman called “Raoul.”
A number of books, articles
d television films supporting
ay's claims or putting forth
her conspiracy theories have
pllowed.
Then last week, an article in a
bndon newspaper reported
at a Memphis businessman
anted immunity in return for
escribing a plot to kill King. It
noted William Pepper, the lat-
t in a long line of lawyers who
ve represented Ray, and Lew-
Garrison, a Memphis tawyer
ho represents Jowers and four
hers who say they know de-
Is of the alleged plot.
As the week contihued, media

erest grew. It reached a peak: .

ursday night when the 67-

ar-old Jowers told a national

evision audienc¢e that he was

ed by Frank Liberto to_ar-
e for the assm

The five have asked for immu-
nity from criminal prosecution
in exchange for telling their
version of how King came to be
shot to death on April 4, 1968, as

-he stood on a balcony of the Lor-

raine Motel in Memphis.

James Earl Ray pleaded guilty
to the Kkilling and is serving 99
years in a prison in Nashville.
He has tried to take back his
guilty plea, and a London lawyer
is handling his effort to gain a
new trial.

The Tennessean reported that
Holt was named as King’s assas-

vestigators a few days after the
slaying when John McFerren,
the operator of a small store in
Somerville, called Baxton Bry-
ant, then director of the Tennes-
see Council on Human Rela-
tions.

McFerren said he had been at

the Scott Street farmers market,
buying a sack of potatoes when
he heard a heavyset white man
say on the telephone:

“Kill the son of a bitch on the
balcony and get the job done.
You will get your $5,000.”

Later, McFerren said, he
heard the man say:

“Don’t come out here. Go to
New Orleans and get your mon-

" ey. You know my brother.”

Frank Liberto denied making
such statements on the phone,
though he said he often dis-
cussed large amounts of money
in connection with his business.
He also admitted he might have
said King should be shot in casu-

al conversations.
i el S

sin by Willie Akins, one of two
men who told their version of
King’s murder on ABC’s Prime-
Time Live broadcast Thursday.

Akins attributed the story to
Loyd Jowers, who told ABC dur-
ing the broadcast that he was
paid by a Memphis man, now de-
ceased, to hire someone to kill
King. Jowers said Ray wasn’t the
assassin.

Holt said the secondhand re-
port by Akins is wrong.

“lIdidn’tdo it—oh, no, no, no,”
he said when questioned. The
newspaper reported that Holt

‘ing about King,” Zachary said
. Friday.

The information from McFer-
ren was mixed with hundreds of
tips to police and the FBI in the
aftermath of the King slaying.
Investigators followed them up,
but many were inconclusive.
They were forgotten as the trail
left by Ray became hot.

The men who sent Ray to pris-
on remain fully confident that
Ray was the triggerman. They
view with strong skepticism
Jowers’s televised claim that he
took part in a plot to kill King.

“I think it’s hogwash,” said
Robert Cochran, who helped in-
vestigate the King slaying in
1968 as a homicide captain. He’s
now an executive in a security
firm.

“It’s kind of warmed-over soup
to me,” said Robert K. Dwyer,
who would have helped pros-
ecute Ray had he gone to trial.
Then an assistant district attor-
ney general, Dwver now is a

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176

took a polygraph test which sup-
ported his claim of innocence.
The Orlando man said he was
often a customer in a restaurant
Jowers owned near the Lorraine

Motel. Holt said he worked as a

produce packer in Memphis in
1968 but barely knew Jowers and

s man denies claim he killed King

had no knowledge of a plot to
kill King. “Jowers is lying,” he
said. “Jowers ain’t give me no
money.”

He said he did know Frank Li-
berto, whom Jowers named as
the man who paid him to ar-

range the assassination.
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| Latest twist proves mr—
it’s a hoax, he says

By David Waters
The Commercial Appeal

9

A Florida man’s denial that he (‘/ P
v

was hired to kill Dr. Martin Lu-

ther King Jr. pokes even more

holes in a recently publicized v
conspiracy theory, Shelby Coun-

ty Dist. Atty. Gen. John P1erott1

said Sunday.

Pierotti said Frank Holt’s deni-

al — reportedly confirmed by a
polygraph test — proves recent
claims about the assassination
are a hoax.

But Dr. William Pepper, a Lon-
don attorney working to free
King’s imprisoned assassin
James Earl Ray, said Sunday that
Holt is being set up as a patsy to
throw investigators off the trail

of Loyd Jowers.

Pierotti said he will still inves-
tigate Jowers’s recent claims
about the killing and will talk to
Frank Holt, now homeless in Or-
lando, Fla. Holt worked in Mem-
phis in 1968 and says he was in
Jim’s Grill near the Lorraine
Motel when King was killed.

Holt was named as the trigger-
man by an associate of Jowers,
who is a retired Memphis busi-
nessman now living near Mar-
tin, Tenn. Jowers ran Jim’s Grill
in 1968.

Jowers told ABC’s PrimeTime
Livelast week he hired someone
to shoot King and that person
was not James Earl Ray.

Ray -pleaded guilty to the
charge of killing King in 1969
but recanted three days later. He

FB1/DOJ
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has sought a trial ever since and
has written two books in which
he claims he was set up by a
shadowy figure named Raoul. -

Willie Akins, who appeared
with Jowers on the television
news program, said Jowers told
him repeatedly that Holt was the
true triggerman.

Holt denied the claim in a
copyrighted interview in Sun-
day’s The Tennessean newspa-
per. Holt said he barely knew
Jowers and had no knowledge of
a plot to kill King. The newspa-
per said Holt passed a lie detec-
tor test.

“Jowers is lying,” he told the
newspaper. “Jowers ain’t give
me no money.”

Pierotti said Sunday that
Holt’s denial adds even more .

. doubt to Jowers’s claims. ,

“I think we’re going to be able
to shoot holes all through this
thing,” Pierotti said.

“Ifyou get a look at his picture,
well, if he’s the one who shot
King, it would surprise me.”

In the ABC interview last
week, Jowers stopped short of
identifying the alleged hit man
or saying that he actually gave
him the money to kill King. But
AKins has not been so reticent in
other interviews he has given.

Reached at his London home
Sunday, Pepper said he has
known Jowers for 16 years and
has known about Jowers’s
claims for the past five years.

Pepper said he thinks Jowers
hired a lawyer and went public
with part of his story because he
is running scared. He noted that
Jowers has asked for immunity
before telling more of his story.

“There’s no doubt in my mind
that Jowers had the contract in
Memphis to kill King,” Pepper
said.

“I think he’s trying to bring
Frank Holt into it to pass it all off
on him. It’s possible that Jowers
was paid $10,000 to hire an assas-
sin and carried it out himself.”

Pepper said he has hired Mem-
phis lawyer Wayne Chastain to
petition for a grand jury investi-
gation into the new claims. If
that fails, Pepper said he will
seek to challenge Ray’s convic-
tion with a writ of habeas corpus
in Criminal Court. The attorney
said he’s also considering filing
a lawsuit against Jowers.

“I'm hoping to get an open and
fair hearing somewhere in Shel-
by County,” Pepper said.

“Im representing a man who
has been falsely accused for 25
years.” : .




FD-3%0 (Rev. 5-8-81)

(Mount Clipping in Space Below)

¢
(Indicate page, name of
newspaper, city and state.)

Jowers link

Dete: 12/24/93; Pge.

Edition:
COMMERCIAL APPEAL
MEMPHIS, TN

Character:

or
Classification:
Submitting Office:

44-1987

MEMPHIS

indexing:

rejected, King records

show

By Marc Perrusquia
The Commercial Appeal

This month’s claims linking
retired businessman Loyd
Jowers to a plot to assassinate
Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. were
first investigated in 1969, but ap-
parently were dismissed as un-
founded when a key witness said
she knew nothing to support the
story, public records show.

Ten months after King’s April

4, 1968, assassination, the Dis-
trict Attorney’s Office received a
tip that Jowers may have been
involved in the shooting, ac-
cording to rarely viewed docu-
ments among the King assassi-
nation files.

Jowers, now 67 and living near
Martin, Tenn., stirred contro-
versy last week when he claimed
on national television that he
was paid money by another
Memphis businessman to hire a
gunman to kill King.

But in 1969, a tip involving
Jowers was dismissed when the
key witness behind the story,
Betty Spates, told investigators
she was offered $5,000 from King
supporters to finger Jowers as a
possible gunman because they
did not believe James Earl Ray
shot the civil rights leader, re-
cords show. Spates also told in-
vestigators in a Feb. 12, 1969,
statement that she never
claimed Jowers shot King and
conceded she had no “knowl-
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edge whatsoever concerning the
shooting of Dr. Martin Luther
King Jr.,” records show.

Iq 1968, Spates was a waitress
at Jim’s Grill, a restaurant near
the Lorraine Motel where King
was Kkilled. In her statement to
investigators, she said she had
been offered money to say she
didn’t believe Ray killed King.
Spates told investigators she was
approached by a local bail
bondsman who offered her
$5,000 to name Jowers, then the

owner of Jim’s Grill, as King’s

killer.

The bail bondsman told Spates
her payment would come from
King’s top aide, Rev. Ralph Aber-
nathy, who died in 1990, and an-
other man named Joe Patterson,
according to Spates’s statement.

Reached this week in her
South Memphis home, Spates —
now reportedly a key witness be-
hind the new conspiracy claims
— said the 1969 statement was a
forgery.

“You don’t see a signature on
the bottom, do you?” she asked a
reporter.

The statement was unsigned.
But the paper and a second docu-
ment from February 1969 in the
King assassination files may
help explain why the new claims
of conspiracy have surfaced
now.

The latest.conspiracy theory
took off when researchers re-

cently uncovered one of the doc-
uments, said Kenneth Herman, a
-Memphis private investigator
who worked with Ray’s attorney
during the filming of a mock tri-

sal called Guilt or Innocence: The
. Trial of James Earl Ray, which

i

I
|
\

‘‘aired last spring on cable televi-
“sion.
. Ray is serving a 99-year sen-
tence for the assassination, but
repeatedly has proclaimed his
innocence since pleading guilty
to the crime in 1969.
. Herman said he had talked
with Spates in recent years
about a possible conspiracy, but
said Spates finally told him the
full details behind the new con-
spiracy allegation in November
1992 when Herman located a rec-
;ord in the assassination files.
»» What Herman found was a
¥Feb. 10, 1969, memo from district
spttorney investigator John L.
Carlisle, which outlined a tip im-

|

-plicating Jowers in the assassi-

nation.

According to the memo, a bail
bondsman by the name of James
Alexander Wright approached
authorities, claiming Spates had
told him new details behind the
assassination.

Wright said he met Spates
while making bail for a relative
of hers, the memo said. ,

According to the memo,
Wright said Spates told him that
on the day of the assassination,
“her boss man at the restaurant
(Jowers) was out at the back-
yard, no one there except him,

that he was the only one that

could have killed King. That her
boss man was the one who found
the gun.”

The memo went on to say that
when police questioned Jowers
on the day of the assassination,
“he was lying to them all at the
same time.” '

According to the memo, Spates
also had seen Ray that day walk-
ing to and from shops in the
area, claiming “Mr. Ray is not

guilty, for I was there. ... know
every move he made.”

The memo also said that
Wright and a “Mr. O’'Neil of the
State Surety Bonding Company”
were interviewed, presenting
authorities with a tape record-
ing of an unspecified nature that
“O’Neil had in his possession on
January 30, 1969, concerning the
same information.”

A 1969 Memphis city directory
shows the general manager of a
firm called State Surety Bonding
Co., 300 Poplar, was an Albert M.
O’Neil. Efforts this week to lo-
cate O’'Neil and Wright were un-
successful. :

Dist. Atty. Gen. John Pierotti
said he first became aware of the
1969 memo last week. Pierotti
said his staff has since located a
three-page statement that Spates
gave at the District Attorney’s
Office two days after the initial
memo.

In her statement, Spates said
Wright aggressively sought to
get a statement from her and an
unidentified sister of hers who
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also worked at Jim’s Grill.

“He wanted to ask my mother
for permission for me to geton a
recorder and say who I believed
killed King,” Spates said in the
statement. At one point, Spates
said: “He say, ‘I will give you
$5,000 if you will say that you
didn’t believe that Ray killed
King.’ And I told him my life was
worth more than $5,000,” Spates
said in the statement.

“And he told me wouldn’t
nothing happen to me because
Rev. Abernathy and them didn’t

believe Ray killed King and they
wanted somebody that wasn’t
scared to get up and say so.”
When pressed, Spates said she
had no information on King’s as-

sassination, never claimed
- Jowers found a rifle and never
said Jowers could have killed
King. :

Pierotti said he has not located
any tape recordings or other in-
formation regarding the investi-
gation of the 1969 claim. Former
prosecutors James C. Beasley
and Robert K. Dwyer, whose

names appear among the 1969
documents, said they don’t re-
call the claim, saying they
checked out numerous tips that
never panned out. ,
Carlisle, the former investiga-
tor who wrote the Feb. 10, 1969,
memo, declined to comment
“about that bunch of garbage.”
The ABC television news pro-
gram PrimeTime Live last week
named Spates as “the prospec-
tive witness who allegedly will
testify she saw Jowers near the
back door with a rifle moments
after the killing.”
But Spates this week declined
to discuss the new allegations.
Abernathy’s widow, Juanita,
said this week that-her husband
always contended others were
involved in King’s assassina-
tion. But she said her husband
never had specific names of oth-
ers and would not have paid
money for such information.
“That’s a blatant lie,” Mrs.
Abernathy said of the 1969 state-
ment. “I have never heard of
such an idiotic thing.”
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Prosecutor
sdys ‘same
old dog and
pony show’

[ By Lawrence Buser
The Cammercial Appeal

The county’s top prosecutor
said Tuesday a London attor-
ney’s claims that new evidence
would clear James Earl Ray in
the murder of Dr. Martin Luther
King Jr. is “the same old dog and
pony show from Picadilly Cir-
cus.”

Nevertheless, Dist. Atty. Gen.
John PRierotti said his ofﬁce ‘8«

an%n mggg&msémk to wit—

nesses who defense attorneys
claim have new information.

~His remarks were made after
Criminal Court Judge Joe B.
Brown Jr. indicated to Ray’s at-
torneys that at least some issues
they were raising had been
ruled on in the past.

Brown said once a guilty plea’
is entered voluntarily and know-
ingly, a defendant — even if not
guilty — cannot change his
mind and withdraw his plea.

The judge said the first issue
to address is whether Ray plead-
ed guilty “in his own best inter-

st” before defense attorneys

resent what they say is new

evi ence that will prove his in-
nocence.

Ray has had at least four state
})ost-comncnon hearings and a

deral habeas corpus petition
in which he sought to have his
plea withdrawn.

“At this point, it seems those
issues have been resolved by the
State of Tennessee and then nu-
merous  appellate  courts,”
Brqwn said ,

fense attorneys Monday
filgd motions seeking to free Ray

By Michael McMullan

Dr. William Pepper (left) and Wayne Chastain, attorneys for James Earl Ray, huddle as Dist. Atty. Gen. John Plerottl talks to the
press after Tuesday's hearing on the assassination of Dr. Martin Luther King Jr.

from the 99-year sentence he re-
ceived in 1969 after pleading
ﬁullty to the assassination of
ing on April 4, 1968, on the bal-
cony of the Lorraine Motel. They
said Ray has been imprisoned il-
legally for the past 25 years.

Dr. William Pepper, Ray’'s at-
torney of London, said Ray en-
tered his guilty plea without
knowing facts that would have

exonerated him. He said new
evidence will show Ray’s “actual
innocence.”

Prosecutors and Ray’s attor-
neys will argue the matters be-
fore Brown on Feb. 10.

Pepper said new evidence in-
dicates former Memphis busi-
nessman Loyd Jowers was part
of a broad conspiracy responsi-
ble for King’s death, not Ray.

Jowers, 67, now living in Martin,
Tenn., said on national televi-
sion last month that he was paid
by another Memphis business-
man to hire a gunman to kill the
civil rights leader.

On Monday, a small group of
church and civil rights leaders
called for a special prosecutor to
re-examine the case.

Pierotti said Tuesday that is

not likely to happen.

He said allegations of a broad
conspiracy and Jowers’s in-
volvement in the King murder
were looked into and dismissed
in the state’s investigation more
, than two dozen years ago. “All of
‘this has been litigated and I
don't see anything new in this,”
Pierotti said. “I don’t have any
question that Ray was guilty.”

Inmate cuts
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would clear James Earl Ray in
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est” before defense attorneys
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evidence that will prove his in-
nocence.
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ederal habeas corpus petition
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from the 99-year sentence he re-
ceived in 1969 after pleading
uilty to the assassination of
ing on April 4, 1968, on the bal-
cony of the Lorraine Motel. They
said Ray has been imprisoned il-
legally for the past 25 years.

Dr. William Pepper, Ray’s at-
torney of London, said Ray en-
tered his guilty plea without
knowing facts that would have

exonerated him. He ¢
evidence will show Ray
innocence.”
Prosecutors and Ra
neys will argue the m
fore Brown on Feb. 10.
Pepper said new evi
dicates former Memp
nessman Loyd Jowers
of a broad conspiracy
ble for King’s death,
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!
 Ray’s lawyers talk
of test-firing gun

Lawyers seeking freedom for
James Earl Ray met with state

|

prosecutors Monday to. deter-
mine when they can test-fire the

alleged murder weapon and ana-
1 lyze the slug
that killed Dr.
Martin Luther
King Jr.
Defense at-
torney Wayne
Chastain
showed up
with an Ameri-
can studies
teacher and a
watch repair-

James Earl

‘ ecutors got
© court approval to delay the tests

until Tennessee Bureau of Inves-
. tigation officials can be present
| to observe.

Asst. Dist. Atty. Gen. David
Shapiro, who said the state
wants to protect the condition of
the evidence, said a testing date
has not yet been set.

Criminal Court Judge Joe
Brown last month approved the
tests in a broad ruling that al-
lows Ray’s lawyers to build a
case for giving the confessed
killer a trial.

Ray, 66, whe is serving a 99-
year prison sentence, has been
trying to withdraw his 1969
guilty plea, claiming he was
framed and coerced. His request
for parole was denied last
month.

King was shot to death Aprii 4,
1968, on the balcony of the Lor-
raine Motel, now the National
Civil Rights Museum.

: —Lawrence Buser

man to begin ;
Ray tests, but pros-
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Ray attorney may ask
Reno to probe ‘coverup’

By Lawrence Buser .
The Commercial Appeal

“A defense attorney for Jémes
"Earl Ray said Thursday he may

callon U.S. Atty. Gen. Janet Reno

to investigate the 1968 assassina-
tion of Dr. Martin Luther King
Jr.in Memphis. .
~ Dr. William Pepper of London
said that could expose what he
called a’ 26-year coverup. The
county’s top prosecutor John
Pierotti called Pepper’s coverup
and conspiracy theories “hog-
wash.”

“Ray’s defense was - stung
Wednesday by. a ‘state appeals

.court order that halted"their

plans to conduct tests on the ri-
fle and death slug in the case.
The Tennessee Court of Crimi-

nal Appeals also ordered Crimi-

.tice and this is a matter for the

.into.”

nal Court Judge Joe Brown to ex-
plain his earlier ruling allowing
Ray’s attorneys to build a court
case aimed at Ray’s exoneration.

Pepper and Pierotti held sepa-
rate press conferences Thurs-
day.

Pepper 1mp11ed that the appel-
late court’s ruling shows that it
also is part of a coverup of the
'King assassination.

-“Knowingly or unknowmgly,
great numbers of people have
become involved in covering up
the truth,” Pepper said. “Keep-
ing an innocent man in prison

.. borders on obstruction of jus:

Us. jattorney general to look

Ray, 66, pleaded guilty in 1969
to King’s murder and is serving

Please see RAY, Page B8

P

MEMPHIS, FRIDAY, JUNE 17, 1994

From Page B1

Ray

a 99-year prison sentence. He has
since said his plea was coerced
and that he was used by a
network of unknown conspira-
tors.

Pepper said he is “not overly
optimistic” that the state appel-
‘late court will uphold Brown’s
decision to let the defense pre-
sent testimony and conduct tests

‘'on evidence on Ray’s behalf.

Pepper said he then plans to
contact Reno and ask that she
convene a federal grand jury to
look into the matter.

Pierotti said the case has been
thoroughly investigated and liti-
gated and that Pepper has pro-
duced no new credible evidence.

“According to Pepper and con-
spiracy buffs, everybody in gov-
ernment sits around and con-
spires against somebody,” Pier-
otti said. “We don’t have time for

all that. There’s no conspiracy.”

He said Memphis businessman
Loyd Jowers’ claim last winter to
being involved in a plot to kill
King has been contradicted by
witnesses he has relied on to

support his story.

Pierotti said he has reviewed
parts of the Ray case at the re-
cent request of Reno’s office and
that he has offered to let her of-
fice or local federal prosecutors
review the case file.
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The family of Dr. Martin
Luther King Jr. ended a 29-
year - silence Thursday and
asked for a trial {u- the slain
civil rights leader’s convicted
assassin, James Earl Ray.

The emotional announce-
ment in Atlanta followed news
reports last week thit the fam-
ily supported a trial for Ray.
The impact remains to be seen,
but it’s certain to bring scads of
reporters to Memphis next
week for a court hearing.

The Feb. 20 hearing is set to
review a motion by Ray’s attor-
neys to test the murder rifle,
but a prosecutor said he’s been
told that defense attorney Wil-
liam Pepper of London may use
it as a stage for one or more of
his conspiracy theories.

“Pepper’s really stirring the
pot,” said John Campbell, as-

By Marc Perrusquia
The Commercial Appeal

‘d34 VIG3N
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sistant district attorney gener-
al, who said he’s been inun-
dated with media calls from as
far away as Germany.

Media interest has height-
ened since Ray, 68, fell ill with

a liver disease in December. .

Serving a 99-year sentence for
King’s 1968 murder in Mem-
phis, Ra¥ may have only
months to live and his family is
trying to arrange a liver trans-
plant.

That set the stage for a press
conference Thursday attended
by King’s four children and his
widow, Coretta Scott King.

“The lack of a satisfactory

resolution to questions sur-

rounding the assassination of.

Martin Luther King Jr. has
been a source of continuing
pain and hardship to our fami-
ly,” said Dexter King, a son of
the civil rights leader.

“It was time to come for-
ward, make a statement about
this, which has haunted us for
years,” said King. “If Mr. Ray
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does not pull through, this will
die with him.”

Dist. Atty. Gen. Bill Gibbons
said he would be happy to meet
with the King family and would
cooperate in investigating any
new lead, but said the state
stands firm in its position on
Ray’s guilt. _

“James Earl Ray was con-
victed for the murder of Dr.
King. That conviction has been
upheld seven times,” Gibbons
said. “It’s the state’s position
that Mr. Ray is exactly where
he needs to be — namely in
prison for the murder of Dr.
King.” . .

Ray pleaded guilty in 1969,
agreeing he alone killed King.
Days ldter, Ray recanted and
has sought a trial ever since.

A number of King’s associ-
ates in the civil rights move-
ment have come forward in re-
cent years to ask for a re-exam-
ination of the assassination.
Their opinions on Ray’s in-.
volvement range from that of a

_Involving a couple of St.
"/ businessmen but that Ray — an

ings want Ray to have his trial .

dupe who was set up to a par-
ticipant who knows more than
he’s telling.

A congressional inquiry in
the 1970s concluded there
might have been a conspiracy
Louis

ex-con and a purported racist
— Kkilled King.

Jack McNeil, local co-coun- - -

sel for Ray’s defense, said the
King family’s support would
aid Ray. Ray’s attorneys plan
to ask Criminal Court Judge
Joe Brown next week for per-
mission to test the 30.06
Remington murder rifle with
an X-ray technology to deter-
mine if the bullet found in
King’s body was fired from the

gun.

McNeil did not rule out other
possibilities, including possibly
unmasking the mysterious
Raoul, whom Ray says framed
him but who has never been
located.

“Stay tuned,” McNeil said.
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Ray’s lawyer says
order clears way to

pursue test on rifle

Criminal Court Judge Joe
"Brown issued a written order
. Thursday backing up his bench
ruling that new technology
might prove whether a rifle
linked to James Earl Ray was
used to kill Dr. Martin Luther
King Jr. in 1968.

The ruling and order sends
the issue of whether to test the
.30.06 Remington rifle to the
state Court of Criminal Appeals
for further consideration.

In 1994, the appeals court
"halted Ray’s latest appeal and
prohibited Brown from taking
further action in the case.

State prosecutor John
Campbell said Brown’s order
was expected to favor testing of
the rifle.

“All it does is put what he

(Brown) said in court in writ-

ing,” Campbell said. “He made
findings of fact (in the order),
but he didn’t order the rifle
tested.”

Ray attorney Jack McNeil
said he looks at the order as a
“green light” to proceed with
the issue of testing the weapon.

If Ray’s attorneys eventually
‘win the right to test the weap-
on, they likely would face'nu-
merous other legal hurdles that
would include convincing a

.court that the results warrant
giving Ray the trial he has
sought for almost 29 years.

. The case has taken on new

interest since the 68-year-old

‘Ray learned he has life-

. threatening medical problems

: caused by cirrhosis of the liver.

—John Semien
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clings to King

Picks photo of ‘Raoul’
who he says framed him

Frail Ray

story |

By Marc Perrusquia
The Commercial Appeal

NASHVILLE — Once he was
simply Jimmy Ray, small-timé
crook and stickup man. -

In the flash of a rifle muzzle
29 years ago, he became James
Earl Ray, assassin of America’s
greatest civil rights leader, Dr.
Martin Luther King Jr.

Seeing him Monday — the
white hair, bony hands and that
shy smile that curls with a visi-
tor’s every word — he seems as
puzzling as ever.

Here is James Earl Ray, the
resourceful criminal who es-

caped from a Missouri prison

.and underwent plastic surgery

in Los Angeles in the months
before King’s 1968 murder in
Memphis, eventually leading
authorities on a two-month
manhunt through four coun-
tries.

Here, too, is Jimmy Ray, the
bungling bandit who once got
shot in the arm during a
botched robbery, the drifter
who fled his youth in the hard-
Iuck river towns north of St.
Louis only to spend more of his
adult life in jail than out.

"~ As Ray, 69, sat slumped and
droopy-eyed in a prison wheel-
chair with advanced cirrhosis
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[ | Thewunfu,sual alliance .
between James =Earl
Ray’'s brother Jerry and

the King family is trou-
bling to those who re-
member Jerry Ray's pa:t.

4

of the liver, those old questions
about King’s murder and how a
petty criminal could pull it off
clouded around him like an un-
shakable apparition.

But if the world is hoping for
a deathbed confession, it may
be in for a long wait.

In a 20-minute interview
Monday with The Commercial
Appeal, Ray once again denied
that he shot King, a claim he
has made since confessing to
the civil rights leader’s murder
in 1969 and then recanting on
his way to prison.

“No,” Ray said. “But don’t
listen to what I say. What you
have to do is not pay any atten-
tion to what I say, or listen to
the prosecution.”

The answers lie in govern-
ment records sealed for 50
years by the U.S. House Select
Committee on Assassinations
in 1979, he said.

“I like to talk about the re-

2025 RELEASE UNDER E.O. 14176

cords. Don’t ask me what I
think.”

Although largely confined to
a bed here at the Department
of Correction’s Lois DeBerry
Special Needs Facility where
he is serving a 99-year sen-
tence, Ray remains optimistic.

“I hope to get a liver trans-
plant,” he said with a nod, al-
though no inmate in Tennessee

‘has ever received a transplant

and Ray still needs to get on a
waiting list.

Antd he is looking forward to
a historic meeting planned
later this month with King’s

Please see RAY, Page A5




From Page A1

Ray

son, Dexter. ,

Dexter King, 36, who heads

.the Martin Luther King Jr.
Center for Nonviolent Social
Change in Atlanta, has called
for a trial for Ray. He has said
he is troubled by recent ac-
counts that others may have
been involved in his father’s
murder.

“1’d answer any question he
has,” Ray said.

Would the meeting help
Ray’s case? : )

“It’s nat going to do anything
but help, is it?”” Ray said. “It’s
not going to hurt anything.”

As he has done since virtu-
ally the day he pleaded guilty,.
Ray claimed again that he was
framed by a mysterious man he
knew only as Raoul. Taking his
story a step further, Ray also
pointed to 'a picture of a New
York man he recently sued in a
sealed Shelby County Circuit
Court case, saying that person
is the shadowy Raoul.

- But Ray’s declarations of in-
nocence and the recent affilia-
tion of the Ray and King fami-
lies in the call for a new trial
have angered some who have
long been convinced of Ray’s
guilt.

The FBI unearthed a large
body of evidence against Ray
— including his fingerprints on
the murder rifle found near the
Lorraine Motel where King
was shot — evidence that led to
his guilty plea in 1969. Subse-
quent nationally televised
hearings when Congress re-ex-
amined King’s murder in the

| 1970s left many Americans
with the image of Ray as a self-
serving liar.

_ The House Select Committee
on Assassinations (HSCA),
which heard witnesses in 1978,
concluded in 1979 that Ray in-
deed shot King, calling his alibi
and Raoul story “unworthy of
belief.” :

G. Robert Blakey, who
served as HSCA’s chief coun-
sel, says the push for a new
trial is “a waste of time” be-
cause Ray is guilty. Even if
ballistics tests requested
recently by Ray’s attorneys
point to someone else as the
shooter, Blakey said, that won’t

erase Ray’s involvement,

which includes evidence that
Ray stalked King throughout
the South. v

“It is a detail of history whe-
ther Ray was a co-conspirator
or a shooter,” Blakey said.
“And he’s not.(exonerated) in

either role. An aider and abet- .

tor of a homicide goes down for
homicide.” _
The path to prison

James Earl Ray shuffled
across the concrete floor of his
cell, his movements painfully
slow. _

The cramped room has a sin-
gle bed, a shower, a stainless
steel commode and television
set. ‘

“There’s no remote,” Ray
told a visitor without looking

up.
Now and then he patted his’

bloated abdomen, which hung
noticeably from an otherwise
rail-thin frame. With his liver
malfunctioning, Ray said his
stomach often fills with fluids.

He’s not sure how his liver
went bad. He claims he does
not have a history of heavy
drinking or drug use.

“The doctor, he’s not sure
how it happened,” he said, sit-
ting back in his wheelchair.
Ray paused several moments
as if collecting his thoughts,
which he does frequently.

“My health is not real good,”
he said, the strange smile
swelling on his face. “Other
than that, I don’t have any
problems.” ’

.Over the course of the inter-
view, Ray at times rambled al-
most incoherently. At other
times he appeared sharp and
lucid.

Ray has been moved in and
out of a local hospital at least
four times in recent months.
| Once, he was critical and in a
/| coma. He’s not sure how much
| time he has left. He said he
hopes it’s “years.”

More certain is how Ray got
here. It is a story of a career
criminal.

The first of seven children,

James Ea ay was born
in Alton, Ill., a
ardscrabble town of found-

ries, mills and working-class
neighborhoods along the Mis-
sissippi River, some 20 miles
upstream from St. Louis.
School did not interest him.
Before dropping “out. of the
ninth grade, he had earned a

| long string of “I's” - Inferior -
| across the river at Ewing
: School in Ewing, Mo.

+ _Ray went to work at 16,in a

' shoe factory in Alton before

- Joining the Army and serving

- an undistinguished stint with a-

, military police unit in Ger-
many. Records show he was
treated for gonorrhea and

- syphilis before his discharge in
1948 for lack of adaptability to
the service.

In the Army, Ray launched a
lengthy criminal career. He
served three months in a stock-
ade for drunkenness and skip-
ping duty. ¥




Over the ne xt 20 years Ray
would be arre:sted at least nine
times as he dri fted in and out of
thé St. Louis airea. His FBI rap-
sheet shows g rrests for suspi-
cion of burgléwry in California,
vagrancy’ in llowa, robbery in
Illinois and |forgery in Mis-
souri.

By 196 7 he |had served three
prison te.rms |totaling 14 years
behind beirs. )

He was sefrving a 20-year
sentence for 1robbery when he
escaped iin 19(67 from the Mis-
souri Stat s Pepitentiary in Jef-
ferson City. ]

On the lam,\ he ventured to
Canada, tihen !|to Mexico, Los
Angeles and' New Orleans

before spe:nding the last few
weeks befiore King’s death in
Atlanta anc i other Sqorlthern cit-
ies. ‘

When Kir 1g was s\ihtot April 4,

1968, while standing on the bal-
cony of the Lorraine Motel in
Memphis, R ay was in a rented
room in a .boarding house

across the street.

When he was finally arrested
two months later in London,
Ray had led authorities on one
of the largest manhunts in his-
tory.

He made it all the way to
Atlanta in a white Ford Mus-
tang that was seen fleeing
Memphis and, obtaining a
forged passport in Canada,
flew to Portugal and back to
England before he was caught.

He was caught because the
FBI found his fingerprints on a
Remington .30-06 rifle, beer
cans and other items wrapped
in a bundle that was dropped
outside the rooming house.
Prosecutors theorized that Ray
dropped the bundle in a panic
when he saw a police cruiser
coming toward him.

Ray didn’t have any lengthy
explanations Monday when
asked how he got away.

“It’s not really all difficuit,”
he said with a shrug.




Plot theories

Through the years, theories
have been floated that others
were responsible for King’s
death.

Suspicions were fueled by
revelations after King’s death
that the FBI had harassed him
through wiretaps and a covert
campaign to destroy his credi-
bility. But the House Select
Committee on Assassinations
found in 1979 that the FBI and
other government agencies
were not involved in King’s
murder.

The two-year, $2.5 million in-
vestigation reaffirmed the FBI
and Memphis Police investiga-

tions of a decade earlier, con- -

cluding that Ray had shot King
by firing a rifle through a
rooming house window. The
evidence against him included
a map of Atlanta with Ray’s

prints and a circle around the .

vicinity of King’s home, evi-
dence of stalking.

Denying he’d stalked King,
Ray told the committee at one
point that if -anyone could
prove he had been in Atlanta
days before the murder, he’d
take credit for the assassina-
tion.

The committee then pro-
duced a laundry receipt show-
ing Ray had laundered clothes
in Atlanta on April 1, 1968.

“This is like the Bruno Magli
shoes” in the 0O.J. Simpson
case, Blakey said. “I mean the
guy lies.”

The House 1nvest1gat10n also
unveiled evidence suggesting a
conspiracy involving two St.
Louis businessmen and mem-
bers of Ray’s family.

A witness, George Byers, tes-
tified that stockbroker and con-
victed drug dealer John Kauff-
man approached him in late
1967 or early 1968. Kauffman
then took Byers to patent attor-
ney John Sutherland who,
Byers said, offered $50,000
from a ‘“‘secret Southern organ-
ization” to kill King.

Kauffman and Sutherland
both died prior to the House
investigation. In 1968, they
supported former segregation-

ist George Wallace’s presiden-
tial campaign.

House investigators also the-
orized that Ray’s brothers,
Jerry and John, may have been
involved. Investigators learned
that John Ray, who owned a
tavern frequented by American
Independent Party workers
had visited his brother in
prison the day before his es-
cape.

The committee determined
that John or Jerry also may
have helped finance James
Ray’s travels through an unsol-
ved July 1967 bank robbery
Alton, Ill that netted $27 000
John Ray, now 64, was fater
convicted for a similar bank
robbery.

James Ray said Monday he
and his brothers were not in-
volved in such a plot..

“No,” he said, shaking his
head with that faint smile.

‘Raoul’ revealed?

With defense. attorney Wil-
liam Pepper of London by his
side Monday, Ray was asked
again about Raoul.

Ray’s attorneys filed a law-
suit two years ago against a 62-
year-old New York man they
believe is the person who set
up Ray starting with a meeting
in Montreal in 1967. A judge
dismissed the suit last year,
ruling that Ray’s guilty plea
barred him from such a civil
action.

The man, whose identity re-
mains concealed under a court
order, has denied any involve-
ment. Former Shelby County
Dist. Atty. Gen. John Pierotti,
who investigated the allega-
tion, called it a ““cruel” hoax.

Still, Pepper believes it is a
serious lead because Ray
picked the man’s photo out
from among six men and
named him as Raoul. Ray did it
again Monday, albeit a bit ten-
tatively.

“This one here looks just al-
most like him,’””” Ray said,
pointing at thé picture. Ray
said he picked out a similar
photo in 1978, but his memory
seemed hazy I(/Ionday
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“Initially when he identified
the photograph for me, he said
that’s the same one I saw in
1978,” Pepper said after the in-
terview. ‘“His memory gets
spotty” due to his liver disease,
Pepper said.

Pepper has floated several
conspiracy theories since 1993,
including one alleging former
Memphis businessman Loyd
Jowers was involved in the as-
sassination. Jowers, who ran a
cafe below the rooming house
in 1968, told a national televi-
sion audience four years ago
that he was paid money to have
King Kkilled.

That story concerns Dexter
King, who cited it recently
when he was asked why he sup-
ports reopening the case.

Others think less of the de-
velopment.

“One thing one can say on
Mr. Pepper’s behalf is creativ-
ity is his strong suit,” said King
biographer David J. Garrow.
“Once one theory gets knocked
down, there’s no delay in him
coming up with a new one.” .

Still, the case has puzzled
many through the years, in-
cluding the judge who sen-
tenced Ray to prison, the late
W. Preston Battle.

“Most puzzling of -all is his
escape from Memphis,” Battle
told the Associated Press days
after Ray pleaded guilty. “To
me it’s miraculous that he was
able to flee to Atlanta, despite
the all-points bulletins, without
his white Mustang being spot-
ted on a highway.”

But many doubt any new an-
swers will be uncovered.

“Ray hasn’t chosen to tell the
truth for 29 years,” Garrow
said. “I think the chances that
he’s going to choose to do so in
the’,’future that remains are ze-

Ray didn’t seem perplexed
by the puzzles on Monday.
Asked how he would like the

*world to remember him, he re-

plied:
“I don’t give that a thought.”

To reach reporter Marc Per-
rusquia, call 529-2545.




Did Flay act alone?

Authorities generally agree that James Earl Ray killed Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. by firing a rifle through a roohming
house window in Memphis. The question of whether he got help from others — at some level — remains debatable.

David J. Garrow

Author of The FBI and Martin Luther King
Jr. and the Pulitzer Prize-winning King biog-
raphy Bearing the Cross. '

Says Ray definitely killed King.

“I am 100 percent persuaded that a) Ray
was the gunman and b) that he had sorme
sort of exxpectation that he would be financially rewarded. Now
was that expectation something that was conveyed to him first
hand? Q)r| second hand? Or third hand? That's what we don't
know.” :
Garrow {al|so said there is no evidence of a government con-
spiracy, |bilJt said he is open to some discussion of a plot.
“Any coins|ipiracy theory that accepts Ray as the gunman, I'm
willing tc) ¢jionsider. Any conspiracy theory that doesn't accept
Ray as thez gunman, | don't believe is worth talking about.”

Ramsey Clark
U.S. Attorney General in 1968, overseeing
the FBI investigation of King's murder.
Favors another official inquiry. into the
assassination, but said he saw no evidence
§ of a conspiracy when he headed up the
Department of Justice.
“From all \tl hat | saw officially through the morning of Jan. 20,
1969 — aird that's a pretty limited statement when you think
about it —| my guess was that it was an act of an individual.
(But) you r)xever know." .
Clark said | a congressional inquiry in late 1970s did not add
much to c¢{inspiracy claims.
“| didn't se e anything there that impréssed me very much
except hovis people’s torment can make reasoning difficult,
suspicions. high. | think it's very important to keep on inquiring.
We.don't kriow. We may never know... But if there's anything
to find out,, let's find it out.”

f
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Joseph Lowery

Co-founder and president of King’s

Southern Christian Leadership Conference

and close friend of King.

Believes Ray was involved in King's murder.

Supports a trial for Ray to get at the truth.

“I am not here to attest to the innocence of
James Earl Ray,” Lowery told a press gathering after a recent
court hearing. “But | am here to support his right to a day in
court. And | believe with all my heart that justice will be
served....
“Who are the forces that don't want a trial and why? What
does the city of Memphis — do they have something to hide?
The state of Tennessee, do they have something to hide? Do
the Justice Department and the FBI have something to hide? |
think that those are the questions that need to be explored.”

3 G. Robert Blakey

Chief counsel to the U.S. House of

Representatives Select Committee on

Assassinations, which explored King's mur-

der in 1977 and 1978.

Says the push for a trial and publicity sur-

rounding it are “a waste of time” because
Ray is guilty. Believes the House committee was probably cor-
rect in determining that Ray may have expected to collect a
$50,000 bounty placed on King's head by two now deceased
. St. Louis businessmen.
“| think that's probably — probably — what happened. Ray
heard about it and decided to take up the offer.of 50 grand.”
Biakey said it's all but impossible to uncover any conspiracy
now because many witnesses are dead and Ray continues to
lie, likely to protect family members who may have been
involved.

James Lawson

' Memphis minister in 1968 who invited King
to Memphis to support the sanitation work-
ers’ strike and currently is a pastor in Los
Angeles. '
Says Ray is an innocent patsy who was set

~ up by someone — probably the government
— to take blame for the assassination. ‘

“To put someone in jail for 30 years for a murder that they did
not do is in itself an atrocity.... Political decisions were made
that King could be killed and that James Earl Ray could be set
up.” -

Yet Lawson, who performed a 1978 prison marriage between
Ray and his ex-wife, Anna, also has hinted Ray may know
more but is prevented from talking by his criminal's “ethic” or
code of silence.

Lawson also has been active in trying to arrange a liver trans-
plant for Ray: “We rieed him to stay alive until he gets his day
in court.”

Harold Ford

Former Democratic congressman from
Memphis who sat on the House Select
Committee on Assassinations that reviewed
King’s murder.
Says Ray is guilty, but the possible involve-
, ment of others is still up in the air.
“The assassinations committee — we never concluded that
James Earl Ray acted alone. But what we did conclude is that
James Earl Ray killed Martin Luther King Jr.”
Ford said he doesn’t oppose a trial for Ray or new testing of
the Remington hunting rifle that prosecutors say Ray used to
shoot King.
“If there's another angle to it, I'm not in opposition to looking
at the ballistics and looking at the rifle itself,” he said.
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Stalkmg Dr King

Prosecutors: saly Ray stalked Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. in Atlanta,
Selma, Ala., and Memphis. Ray denied that, claiming during a
1978 congre:ssional hearing that if anyonie could prove he was in
Atianta durinig tthe last few days before King was killed in Memphis
he would tak:e icredit for the assassination. Authorities then
produced thi:s feceipt showing Ray — under the alias Eric Galt —
had a tie, trougers, coat and other articles laundered in Atlanta on
April 1, 1968 . (3. Robert Blakey, a Notre Dame law professor who
served as ge ngral counsel to the Houtse Select Committee on
Assasination:s, |likened the developme:nt “the Bruno Magli shoes”
in the O.J. Si mpson case.
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Rifle sales. slip

The sales silip; evidencing James Earl Ray’s purchase of a

R emington |hulnting rifle in Birmingham days before King's murder.
Ussing the aflials Harvey Lowmeyer, Ray first bought a .243
Winchester buit returned it, telling a clerk his “brother” advised him
to get anotl er gun. .

|
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_ . - ’ By Michael McMullan
Jameg Earl Ray, who hopes for a liver transplant, is largely confined to the Lois DeBerry Special Needs Facility in Nashville, a prison for ill convicts.
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By Michael McMuilan

Ray, with attorney William Pepper, points to a phofo of a New York man whom Ray has sued,
identifying him as the “Raoul” who framed him for the murder of Dr. Martin Luther King Jr.
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